
CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting – Agenda 

April 17, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Pooler City Hall 
100 US Hwy 80 SW, 

Pooler, GA 31322 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

1 of 2 

I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM

II. CALL TO ORDER

III. INVOCATION

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 20, 2023
B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Los Compas, LLC DBA

Taqueria Los Compas at 115 Canal Street, Suite 601
C. Special Event Permit Application for Pooler Chamber of Commerce on

July 1, 2023
D. Department Reports

1. Public Works

2. Finance

3. Fire

4. Police

5. Recreation

6. Planning & Zoning

VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
A. Ordinance O2023-04.A – To Amend Appendix A – Zoning, Article III –

General Provisions by Amending Section 6 – Schedule of Development
Regulations (Second Reading)

B. Ordinance O2023-04.B - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article II -
Definitions and Article V - Procedures for Administration and
Enforcement, Section 5 - Public Notice and Section 6 - Public Hearing
Requirements and Chapter 62 - Planning, Article II - Planning and
Zoning Commission -Section 62-34 to Clarify Language Related to
Public Notice Requirements and Public Hearing Procedures (First
Reading)

Page 1 of 124



2 of 2 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS
A. Conditional Use Request to Construct a Hardware Store at 1256,1270, 

1272, and 1276 US Highway 80 West (Public Hearing)

IX. NEW BUSINESS
A. Site Plan for 7 Brew Coffee Shop at 502 Pooler Parkway

B. Minor Subdivision of Lot 4 at Clear Lake Reserve

C. Final Plat and Subdivision Performance Bond for 360 Communities at 
Clear Lake, Phase 1A

D. Georgia Power Company Utility Easement Request for a Distribution 
Line at 1090 South Rogers Street

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 124



CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Minutes 

April 3, 2023 at 6:00 PM

 Pooler City Hall 
100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, 

GA 31322 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

1 of 4 

I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
John Wilcher, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager   
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council    

Absent: Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 

II. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Rebecca Benton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

III. INVOCATION
 Pastor Micah Ellington of Rothwell Baptist Church gave the invocation.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Pastor Ellington led the pledge.

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
Councilmember Stevie Wall thanked both the City's public safety departments 
and his neighbors Charles Yawn and Frank Haskins for their quick action 
assisting another neighbor during a house fire on their street.

VI.  CONSENT AGENDA

A. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 20, 2023

B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Dave & Buster's of 

Georgia, Inc. at 200 Tanger Outlet Boulevard, Suite 790

Mayor Pro Tem Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the consent agenda. 

Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS)

Page 3 of 124



2 of 4 

MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 

A. Ordinance O2023-04.A – To Amend Appendix A – Zoning, Article
III – General Provisions by Amending Section 6 – Schedule of
Development Regulations (Public Hearing; First Reading)
City Manager Robert Byrd presented the ordinance for consideration.
Lamar Mercer of Thomas & Hutton was present to answer questions.
Mayor Rebecca Benton opened and closed the public hearing without
comment. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the first
reading of Ordinance O2023-04.A – To Amend Appendix A – Zoning,
Article III – General Provisions by Amending Section 6 – Schedule of
Development Regulations.

Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS)
MOVER: Wilcher
SECONDER: Hutcherson
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams
NAYS:

B. Resolution R2023-04.A - Amendment to the Schedule of Fees
(Water Meter Increases)
City Manager Robert Byrd presented the resolution for consideration, and
Finance Officer Chris Lightle reported that rate fees charged to the city for 
new water meters and water meter parts are passed onto the end user.
There was a recent increase in these rates, and the Schedule of Fees is
now being updated to reflect that. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to
approve Resolution R2023-04.A - Amendment to the Schedule of Fees
(Water Meter Increases).

Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS)
MOVER: Wilcher
SECONDER: Williams
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams
NAYS:

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Conditional Use Request to Construct a Hardware Store at 1256,
1270, 1272, and 1276 US Highway 80 West (Public Hearing)
City Manager Robert Byrd reported that there was a request by the
petitioner that the item be tabled until the April 17, 2023 City Council
Meeting. Mayor Rebecca Benton opened and closed the advertised public

Page 4 of 124



   

  

3 of 4 

hearing without comment, and noted that there would be another hearing 
at the next meeting. No action was taken. 

  B. Minor Subdivision Plat for Morgan Lakes Industrial Park, Phase VI 
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the plat for consideration. Chad 

Zittroeur of Kern & Company was present to answer questions. Mayor Pro 
Tem Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the Minor Subdivision Plat for 
Morgan Lakes Industrial Park, Phase VI. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  C. Utility Easement Agreement for 101 Miller Pines Road with Ting 
Liang 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the agreement for consideration. 
Councilmember Stevie Wall moved to approve the Utility Easement 
Agreement for 101 Miller Pines Road with Ting Liang. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Williams 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  D. Proposal for Professional Services for the South Rogers Street Lift 
Station Upgrade with Hussey Gay Bell 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the proposal for consideration. 
Councilmember Karen Williams moved to approve the Proposal for 
Professional Services for the South Rogers Street Lift Station Upgrade 
with Hussey Gay Bell not to exceed $190,000.00, subject to City Attorney 
approval. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  E. Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis Courts Change Order #2 from 
Parker Properties: 6” Subgrade Drainage Installation 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the change order for consideration. 
Lamar Mercer of Thomas & Hutton was present to answer questions. 
Councilmember Karen Williams moved to approve the Pooler Recreation 
Complex Tennis Courts Change Order #2 from Parker Properties: 6” 
Subgrade Drainage Installation in the amount of $78,404.70. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 

Page 5 of 124



   

  

4 of 4 

MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
  Councilmember John Wilcher moved to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:18 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 

Page 6 of 124



Page 7 of 124



Page 8 of 124



Page 9 of 124



Page 10 of 124



Page 11 of 124



Page 12 of 124



Page 13 of 124



Page 14 of 124



Page 15 of 124



Page 16 of 124



Page 17 of 124



 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

MAYOR 

Rebecca C. Benton 

 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert H. Byrd, Jr.  

 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Craig Call 

CITY COUNCIL 

M. Shannon Black 

Aaron C. Higgins 

Thomas Hutcherson 

Stevie E. Wall 

John M. Wilcher 

Karen L. Williams 

 

 

                                                                     COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of March 2023 
 

 

Mrs. Williams, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

Water: 

         

Inspected 51 Grease trap inspections. 

34 C.O inspections conducted. 

Replaced 20 residential and/or commercial laterals. 

Completed multiple misc. service orders throughout the city. 

Repaired water main on Wilkes Street. 

Repaired water main at 200 Governor Treutlen (Rainbow Row). 

Repaired and/or replaced 42 water meters/mxu’s. 

           Witnessed the testing and certification of 150 backflow preventers. 

 

 

Sewer & WWTP:  

EOM report attached. 

  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Matt Saxon 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18 of 124

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

MAYOR 

Rebecca C. Benton 

 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert H. Byrd, Jr.  

 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Craig Call 

CITY COUNCIL 

M. Shannon Black 

Aaron C. Higgins 

Thomas Hutcherson 

Stevie E. Wall 

John M. Wilcher 

Karen L. Williams 

     

                                                                        COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of March 2023 

 

Street: 

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city repairing potholes, sidewalks, and shoulder 

work.  

• Pothole repairs at Memorial Blvd., Rogers St, Blue Moon, Cross Creek, Roberts Way, Barrington 

Estates, Chinese Fir, and Timberland Gap. 

• Road patches at Weston &Garden Acers way. 

• Sidewalk repairs at 110 Barrington Estates, North Godley Station, 2478 Old Quacco Road, 2427 

Old Quacco Road.  

• Installed speed bump at 109 Holly St. 

• Placed concrete barriers across from the fire station on Nordic to prevent trucks from blocking 

access to the fire department. 

• Filled in ruts along the Pooler parkway at the beginning of the turn lanes. 

Signs: 

• Replaced 11 signs throughout the city. 

• Repaired 25 signs throughout the city. 

Street Sweeper: 

• 174 miles swept. 

 

Storm Water:  

• Completed routine residential workorders. 

• Assisted the city’s Arborist in the beautification of public works by planting 8 Nuttall Oaks trees. 

• Completed 41,574 of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

 

Canal Maintenance:  

• Repaired access road on Sangrena Canal between Durham Park Boulevard & Pooler Parkway. 

• Started repairing access road on Sharon Court Canal behind Food Lion. 

• Routine maintenance of canals throughout the city.  

 

Public Works Admin: 

• Reviewed 9 sets of site plans.  

 

Page 19 of 124

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


 

 
  MARCH 

2023 
Monthly Report 

480 Edsel Drive, Ste 100 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 

Page 20 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   

Page 21 of 124



Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

SECTION 1.0 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City 
of Pooler for review.  Departmental reports and requested 
supplemental data can be found enclosed.  

MONTH HIGHLIGHT 

- SEWER – Responded to (2) grinder pump calls
- SEWER – Responded to (16) sewer blockage/leak calls
- WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS

▪ PO-LS-01.01 SANGRENA Pump#1: Pulled pump and removed 
debris

▪ PO-LS-27.01 FIRE STATION 3 Pump #1: Pulled pump and removed 
debris

▪ PO-LS-19.05 SOUTHWEST QUAD Control Panel: Power company 
reran Phase B

▪ PO-LS-11.08 NORTHERN TRACT Bypass Pump: Replaced check 
valve.

▪ PO-LS-25.05 HARMONY Control Panel : Replaced line side 
conductor wires and safety switch

▪ PO-LS-30 PARK LANE DUPLEXES Wet Well: Cleaned out station 
with Vac Truck

- 
- WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

▪ PO-WW-GR-30 Stabilizer Wheel_1: Replaced when and 2
bearings.

▪ PO-WW-GR-22 FINE SCREEN_1: Welded cracks in screen
▪ PO-WW-GR-23 FINE SCREEN_2: Welded cracks in screen
▪ PO-WW-BP-03 UPPER BELT_BP1: Removed and replaced upper

belt
▪ PO-WW-BP-72 Control Panel_Belt Press: Replaced E-Stop for pull

cord
▪ PO-WW-GR-13 GRIT BLOWER_1: Replaced belts
▪ PO-WW-UT-02 SCADA SYSTEM: Replaced media converter

▪ PO-WW-AS-01  MEMBRANE AERATION BLOWER 5: Installed new
blower

▪ PO-WW-PM-01 Service Air Compressor: Replaced air compressor

Page 22 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 

Page 23 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

 

SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  

Page 24 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 

Page 25 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 

  

Page 26 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 

Page 27 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

 

SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

I. Approved Projects 
▪ Element Hotel & Commercial Space 

 
II. Projects Under Review 

▪ 212 E Hwy 80 - Office (Submittal #2) 
▪ Outpost Bay (Submittal #3) 
▪ Forest Lakes - Phase 12 (Submittal #1) 
▪ Harmony Subdivision – Phase 8 (Submittal #1) 
▪ Transportation Logistics Terminal – Tract 2A (Submittal #2) 
▪ 7 Brew Coffee Shop (Submittal #3) 
▪ Little Neck Rd Trailer Yard (Submittal #1) 

 
III. Projects Waiting On Responses 

▪ Project Everglades – 1st review completed 3/31/2023 
▪ Tract W – Harmony Amenity (Revised Plans) – 1st review completed 

3/31/2023 
▪ I-16 Mixed Use Access Rd – 1st review completed 3/27/2023 
▪ Chick-fil-A (Grand Central Blvd) – 1st review completed 3/23/2023 
▪ Cambria Suites – 1st review completed 3/20/2023 
▪ Sharon Court Container Yard – 3rd review completed 3/16/2023 
▪ McDonalds (Pooler Pkwy) – 1st review completed 3/15/2023 
▪ McDonalds Driveway – 1st review completed 3/15/2023 
▪ Blakely Commons Multifamily – 1st review completed 3/13/2023 
▪ 2101 Travis field Rd – 1st review completed 3/6/023 
▪ Vystar – 1st review completed on 2/28/2023 
▪ Barrow Drive Trailer Parking Extension – 4th review completed 

2/24/2023 
▪ Pet Paradise – 1st review completed 2/16/2023 
▪ Mosaic Gardens – 1st review completed 2/6/2023 
▪ Valvoline – 1st review completed 1/11/2023 
▪ Pooler One – Pine Barren Road Entrance  - 1st review completed 

11/22/2022 
▪ Quik Trip – 5th review completed on 11/16/2022 
▪ Pooler Parkway & Quacco Rd Widening – 2nd review completed 

10/11/2022 
▪ Lot 3 Dean Forest Business Park – 3rd review completed 

10/18/2022 

Page 28 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

▪ Westbrook Area L1 – 2nd review completed 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L2 – 2nd Review Completed 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L3 – 2nd Review completed 9/8/2022 
▪ Bragg Tract Phase 1 – 1st review completed 9/22/2022 

 
Bond Review: 
 

I. Approved Bond Requests 
▪ Harmony Subdivision Phase 7 – Performance Bond 
▪ Ellis Park Phase 4 – Performance bond 
▪ 360 Communities at Clear Lake Phase 1A – Performance Bond 

 
II. Bond Requests Under Review 

▪ N/A 
 
Additional Engineering Services: 

 
▪ The City has authorized construction of Lift Station #21 & 22. 

EOM has since received the revised set of Lift Station Plans. 
EOM has completed the update of electrical specs.  
 

▪ Pre-Bid is scheduled for April 2023. In January 2023, EOM 
submitted the updated cost estimates for the LMIG roadway 
improvements, with cost values reflective of 2023 prices. In 
Summer 2022, EOM prepared and submitted the initial 2022 
LMIG Bid Documents to the City. 

 
 
  
 
  

Page 29 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 

Page 30 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  

Page 31 of 124



 

Pooler Monthly Report – MARCH 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 

Page 32 of 124



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 02 01 23 02 28

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 03 10

1

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

8.2 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****
 mg/L

  01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

53.7 56.0
 lb/d

**** 2.0 2.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

4618 6202
 lb/d

**** 228 239
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH
 

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.6 **** 7.0
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

  01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

26.9 28.2
 lb/d

**** 1.0 1.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3586 4825
 lb/d

**** 178 190
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.273 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

Page 33 of 124



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 02 01 23 02 28

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 03 10

2

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

16.1 39.8
 lb/d

**** 0.6 1.5
 mg/L

4 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.500 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 10.1 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.9 5.4
****

**** 0.3 0.4
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.387 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.3 3.46
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****
****

  99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.3 1.7
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

  02/DA GR GRAB

Page 34 of 124



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 02 01 23 02 28

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 03 10

3

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.6000 ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ug/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.47 ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ng/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

99.4 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

99.1 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

61 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

  01/30 CA CALCTD

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

Page 35 of 124



February 2023 Permit Data

Daily Data

Daily

2/1/2023 - 2/28/2023

Pooler

Pooler RainFall

Precip In/Day

Inches/Day

Pooler

Effluent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Turbidity NTU

NTU

Pooler

Influent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Influent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Fecal Coliform

#/100ML

2/1/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.55 194.00 171.00 2.00 1.00

2/2/2023 - Thursday 0.00 2.97 212.00 174.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

2/3/2023 - Friday 0.13 3.40 234.00 161.00 2.00 1.00

2/4/2023 - Saturday 0.00 3.24

2/5/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.37

2/6/2023 - Monday 0.00 3.35

2/7/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.00 1.00

2/8/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.16 221.00 212.00 2.00 1.00

2/9/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.17 230.00 167.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

2/10/2023 - Friday 0.00 2.82 236.00 192.00 2.00 1.00

2/11/2023 - Saturday 1.00 3.36

2/12/2023 - Sunday 1.82 3.69

2/13/2023 - Monday 0.10 3.63

2/14/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.58 1.50

2/15/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.40 287.00 168.00 2.00 1.00

2/16/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.33 206.00 173.00 2.00 1.02 2.00

2/17/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.34 224.00 177.00 2.00 1.00

2/18/2023 - Saturday 0.03 3.22

2/19/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.46

2/20/2023 - Monday 0.00 2.94

2/21/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.45 2.00

2/22/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.28 224.00 175.00 2.00 1.00

2/23/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.08 237.00 185.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

2/24/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.17 228.00 176.00 2.00 1.00

2/25/2023 - Saturday 0.00 3.35

2/26/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.19

2/27/2023 - Monday 0.00 3.14

2/28/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.14 1.50

Sum 3.08 91.78 2733.00 2131.00 24.00 12.00 11.00

Avg 0.11 3.28 228.00 177.60 2.00 1.00 1.30

Max 1.82 3.69 287.00 212.00 2.00 1.00 2.00

Min 0.00 2.82 194.00 161.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

GMean 1.30

Page 36 of 124



February 2023 Permit Data

Pooler

Effluent

Nh3 N 

Ammonia

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

TKN

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Org Nitrogen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Ortho 

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Mercury

1631E

NG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Diss Oxygen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

pH

SU

Pooler

Solids 

Removed

Dry TON

0.15 0.14 8.81 6.71 3.70

0.16 0.17 8.67 6.85 1.60

0.22 0.25 8.73 6.82 3.60

9.57 6.74 0.00

9.01 6.57 0.00

8.79 6.72 3.50

8.98 6.92 3.70

0.26 0.30 8.90 6.83 1.90

0.26 0.39 8.75 6.88 4.00

0.23 0.48 10.10 3.50 3.27 0.39 8.43 6.67 3.60

8.92 6.90 0.00

8.55 6.58 0.00

8.99 6.73 3.70

8.94 6.75 3.60

0.33 0.20 3.60 1.47 8.94 6.83 3.60

0.44 0.27 8.61 6.70 3.90

0.67 0.37 8.59 6.86 3.60

8.85 6.91 0.00

8.75 6.87 0.00

8.74 6.98 2.00

8.37 6.84 1.90

1.97 0.49 8.42 6.73 2.00

0.46 0.40 8.41 6.85 3.80

2.03 0.46 8.21 6.80 3.60

8.80 6.73 0.00

8.55 6.80 0.00

8.34 6.79 1.90

8.40 7.02 2.00

7.17 3.92 10.10 3.50 3.27 0.39 3.60 1.47 244.02 190.38 61.00

0.60 0.33 10.10 3.50 3.27 0.39 3.60 1.47 8.72 6.80 2.00

2.03 0.49 10.10 3.50 3.27 0.39 3.60 1.47 9.57 7.02 4.00

0.15 0.14 10.10 3.50 3.27 0.39 3.60 1.47 8.21 6.57 0.00

Page 37 of 124



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 

Page 38 of 124



 

 

Page 39 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................................. 1

Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................ 2

Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............................................. 3

ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 4

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................ 5

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................................................................................................ 6

Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................................ 7

Page 40 of 124



 

 

 

Page 41 of 124



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)

Page 42 of 124



 

     

Page 43 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

1 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 4,814,535.59$    4,222,075.74$   

Licenses and permits............................................. 302,822.78         591,861.32        

Intergovernmental................................................. 334,804.88         363,663.85        

Charges for services............................................... 669,869.09         572,520.50        

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 227,595.65         178,600.96        

Investment earnings.............................................. 131,792.12         3,552.51            

Contributions and donations.................................. 71,542.27           187,932.35        

Miscellaneous........................................................ 33,285.92           51,527.89          

Total revenues............................................................ 6,586,248.30      6,171,735.12      414,513.18         6.72%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 699,748.49         714,103.14        

Judicial................................................................ 123,570.57         108,808.40        

Public safety....................................................... 3,083,321.73      3,109,891.49     

Public works........................................................ 1,585,555.93      1,446,742.42     

Health and welfare............................................. 33,777.41           28,014.78          

Culture and recreation....................................... 392,366.25         427,182.23        

Housing and development................................. 244,908.49         171,833.18        

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 567,396.34         282,851.64        

Interest............................................................... 81,519.92           48,344.64          

Total expenditures..................................................... 6,812,165.13      6,337,771.92      474,393.21         7.49%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... (225,916.83)        (166,036.80)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 222,462.08         167,489.22        

Sale of general capital assets................................ 228,356.50         ‐                     

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 48,989.40           23,218.06          

Total other financing sources (uses) 499,807.98         190,707.28         309,100.70         162.08%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... 273,891.15         24,670.48          

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 33,000,105.87    27,820,097.95   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 33,273,997.02$  27,844,768.43$ 

Page 44 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

2 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 359,975.00$       698,788.50$      

Investment earnings.............................................. 623.68                260.08               

Total revenues........................................................ 360,598.68         699,048.58         (338,449.90)        ‐48.42%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... 60,263.40           40,045.42          

Total expenditures................................................. 60,263.40           40,045.42           20,217.98           50.49%

Net change in fund balance....................................... 300,335.28         659,003.16        

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,581,923.20      2,026,513.14     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,882,258.48$    2,685,516.30$   

Page 45 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

3 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 564.75$              7,500.00$          

Investment earnings.............................................. 46.87                  17.13                 

Total revenues........................................................ 611.62                7,517.13             (6,905.51)            ‐91.86%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 611.62                7,517.13            

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 120,812.07         109,758.62        

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 121,423.69$       117,275.75$      

Page 46 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

4 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. 2,117.86             492.69               

Total revenues........................................................ 2,117.86             492.69                1,625.17             329.86%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 2,117.86             492.69               

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 7,675.69             1,132.84            

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 9,793.55$           1,625.53$          

Page 47 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

5 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 444,924.18$       334,975.25$      

Total revenues........................................................ 444,924.18         334,975.25         109,948.93         32.82%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 222,462.09         167,487.63        

Total expenditures................................................. 222,462.09         167,487.63         54,974.46           32.82%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 222,462.09         167,487.62        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (222,462.09)        (167,487.62)        (54,974.47)          32.82%

Total other financing sources (uses) (222,462.09)        (167,487.62)       

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Page 48 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

6 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ 575,336.99$       619,898.78$      

Investment earnings..................................... 47,669.62           527.80               

Total revenues.............................................. 623,006.61         620,426.58         2,580.03             0.42%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public works.............................................. 255,537.74         ‐                     

Recreation................................................. 326,950.95         ‐                     

Total expenditures........................................ 582,488.69         ‐                      582,488.69        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 40,517.92           620,426.58        

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 7,698,715.93      4,420,409.33     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 7,739,233.85$    5,040,835.91$   

Page 49 of 124



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

7 
 

2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 759,487.99$       660,641.74$      

Sewer fees.............................................................. 843,555.83         830,076.47        

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 38,700.45           31,123.96          

Total operating revenues........................................... 1,641,744.27      1,521,842.17      119,902.10         7.88%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 507,386.07         342,266.67        

Materials and supplies....................................... 428,370.90         185,981.19        

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 935,756.97         528,247.86         407,509.11         77.14%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 152,339.20         177,867.59        

Purchased and contracted services.................... 105,022.07         127,335.07        

Materials and supplies....................................... 295,342.47         305,423.57        

Total water............................................................. 552,703.74         610,626.23         (57,922.49)          ‐9.49%

Total operating expenses........................................... 1,488,460.71      1,138,874.09      349,586.62         30.70%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 153,283.56         382,968.08         (229,684.52)        ‐59.97%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 105,665.81         3,616.05            

Interest expense..................................................... (71,689.62)          (100,127.89)       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. 33,976.19           (96,511.84)          130,488.03         ‐135.20%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 187,259.75         286,456.24         (99,196.49)          ‐34.63%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees.................................................................. 221,230.54         170,601.48        

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 1,230,531.13      4,352,523.18     

Total capital contributions......................................... 1,451,761.67      4,523,124.66      (3,071,362.99)     ‐67.90%

Change in net position............................................... 1,639,021.42      4,809,580.90      (3,170,559.48)     ‐65.92%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 65,088,025.99    54,822,228.61   

Net position, end of year........................................... 66,727,047.41$  59,631,809.51$ 
 

Page 50 of 124



City of Pooler
Fire-Rescue Services

Fire-Rescue Report Mar. 1st – 31st, 2023

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS 
Mar 2023

% Of TOTAL 
Mar 2023

YEAR to Date 
2023

YEAR to Date 
2022

Fires 14 3.10% 32 53
❖ Structure Fires 5 - 9 19

Emergency Medical Service 242 53.66% 693 763
Motor Vehicle Collisions 58 12.86% 144 132
Technical Rescues 13 2.88% 19 14
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 5 1.11% 17 16
Service Call 49 10.86% 127 160
Good Intent Call 42 9.32% 113 103
False Alarm & False Call 28 6.21% 92 86
Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 0 0 0 1
Special Incident/Citizen Complaint 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 451 100% 1237 1328

March Call Volume Increased from 448 in 2022 to 451 in 2023, (.67% increase)

For the year, call volume has decreased by 91 calls or 6.85%.

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2023 - $281,487

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2022 - $139,273

March Year to Date
1. Child Locked in Auto      7 7
2. Animal Locked in Auto      3 3
3. Blood Draws    12            31

Significant Incidents

1. Structure Fire – Harmony Ct. 
2. Structure Fire – Quacco Road – Mutual Aid to Chatham Fire

Page 51 of 124



 

 
 Council Report  

Monday April 16, 2023 

March 2023   

 
• A total of 66 Part 1 crimes were reported in the month of March.  

• From the prior year 2022, there is an increase of 7%. 

• A total of 24 shopliftings were reported in the month of March.  

• From the prior year 2022, this is an increase of 16%. 

• Total Calls for service in March were 1,945. 

• From the prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 8%. 

• A total of 1,710 citations were issued in the month of March.  

• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 2% 

• A total of 147 arrests were made in the month of March.  

• From the prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 15%. 

• A total of 31 DUI arrests were made in the month of March.  

• From the prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 6%. 

 

Activity Time Period 
3/1-3/31/2023 

Year to Date 
2023 

Year to Date 
2022 

Percentage 
Change from 

21 - 22 

     

Part 1 crimes 66 201 187 7% 

Shopliftings 24 74 64 16% 

Calls for service 1945 6,115 6,639 -8% 

Citation 1710 4,437 4,335 2% 

Arrests 147 352 414 -15% 

DUI arrests 31 79 84 -6% 

Page 52 of 124



1

2

3

4

5

6 The annual tree give away was held at the Recreation Complex.

7 Dance classes continued. Registration opened for next session.

8

1

2

 

3

4

5

1

2

3

The senior center celebrated St. Patrick's Day in conjunction with the monthly 

The 'Red Hat' group and volunteers participated in a 'Feed the Hungry' campaign 

and helped distribute meals at Forsyth Park in Savannah.

All regularly scheduled classes continued in March.

centers, and the cemetery.

Parks performed routine maintenance at all 5 parks, the community and senior

birthday party at the center.

Georgia Legal Services discussed options services available to seniors.

Parks

Pooler Gaelic football club continued practicing at complex, as well as Pooler Park.

Seniors participated in day trips to Bishop, SC and Jesup, GA.

Senior Center

The community center was rented each weekend in March.

The monthly TVIP class was held at the community center.

Pooler Parks & Recreation

take place at both parks, at least 4 nights per week and Saturday mornings at Pooler

Monthly Report: March 2023

Recreation Department

Youth baseball, softball, soccer, volleyball and tee ball began practices.  Practices 

Gymnastics classes continued. Registration opened for next session.

Park.

Tennis classes ended in March.  Registration for next session was opened.

Classes continue to meet at Stell Park.

Page 53 of 124



Page 54 of 124



Page 55 of 124



Page 56 of 124



Page 57 of 124



Page 58 of 124



City of Pooler
Single Family Detached Permits

March 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
3/1/2023 230257 Westbrook Area K-1 739 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 924 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03018
3/1/2023 230268 Westbrook Area K-1 740 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 929 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05004
3/1/2023 230269 Westbrook Area K-1 738 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 930 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05005
3/1/2023 230273 Westbrook Area K-1 736 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 931 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05006
3/1/2023 230274 Westbrook Area K-2 155 Binscombe Ln., Lot 982 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05048
3/1/2023 230275 Westbrook Area K-2 157 Binscombe Ln., Lot 983 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05049
3/1/2023 230278 Westbrook Area K-2 159 Binscombe Ln., Lot 984 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05050
3/1/2023 230279 Westbrook Area K-2 161 Binscombe Ln., Lot 985 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05051
3/1/2023 230280 Westbrook Area K-2 148 Binscombe Ln., Lot 987 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05053
3/1/2023 230290 Forest Lakes 6 Superior Ln., Lot 906 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C09007
3/2/2023 230302 Telfair Park 103 Jepson Way, Lot 369 Mungo Homes Same 51009S02012
3/2/2023 230303 Telfair Park 1008 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 434 Mungo Homes Same 51009S01005

3/13/2023 230329 Forest Lakes 115 Como Dr., Lot 935 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C10008 Yes/No
3/13/2023 230330 Westbrook Glen 171 Harvest Hill, Lot 820 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R02038
3/13/2023 230331 Westbrook Glen 142 Harvest Hill, Lot 830 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01023
3/13/2023 230332 Westbrook Glen 134 Harvest Hill, Lot 834 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R10019
3/23/2023 230368 Westwood Reserve 210 Merganser Dr., Lot 15 DR Horton Same 51010G03013
3/23/2023 230369 Westwood Reserve 3 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 17 DR Horton Same 51010G03002
3/23/2023 230370 Westwood Reserve 5 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 18 DR Horton Same 51010G03003
3/24/2023 230373 Telfair Park 105 Jepson Way, Lot 370 Mungo Homes Same 51009S02013
3/24/2023 230374 Telfair Park 118 Jepson Way, Lot 377 Mungo Homes Same 51009S02020
3/24/2023 230376 Westbrook 139 Greenhill Close, Lot 757 Grant Homes Inc. Maria Tirona 51009P02018
3/27/2023 230396 419 James Rd. Alejandro Gonzalez Same 50004A02013A

Total 23

Page 59 of 124



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

March 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
3/1/2023 230293 Benton Grove Townhomes 71 Amalfi Ave., Lot 25A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03027
3/1/2023 230294 Benton Grove Townhomes 73 Amalfi Ave., Lot 25B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03028
3/1/2023 230295 Benton Grove Townhomes 75 Amalfi Ave., Lot 25C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03029
3/1/2023 230296 Benton Grove Townhomes 68 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03030
3/1/2023 230297 Benton Grove Townhomes 66 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03031
3/1/2023 230298 Benton Grove Townhomes 64 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03032
3/1/2023 230299 Benton Grove Townhomes 62 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03033
3/1/2023 230300 Benton Grove Townhomes 60 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03034
3/14/2023 230336 Westbrook Area K-4 161 Holloway Hill, Lot 1078 DR Horton Same 51009R04032
3/14/2023 230337 Westbrook Area K-4 159 Holloway Hill, Lot 1079 DR Horton Same 51009R04031
3/14/2023 230338 Westbrook Area K-4 157 Holloway Hill, Lot 1080 DR Horton Same 51009R04030
3/14/2023 230339 Westbrook Area K-4 155 Holloway Hill, Lot 1081 DR Horton Same 51009R04029
3/14/2023 230340 Westbrook Area K-4 170 Holloway Hill, Lot 1106 DR Horton Same 51009R05131
3/14/2023 230343 Westbrook Area K-4 172 Holloway Hill, Lot 1107 DR Horton Same 51009R05132
3/14/2023 230344 Westbrook Area K-4 174 Holloway Hill, Lot 1108 DR Horton Same 51009R05133
3/14/2023 230345 Westbrook Area K-4 176 Holloway Hill, Lot 1109 DR Horton Same 51009R05134
3/14/2023 230346 Westbrook Area K-4 165 Holloway Hill, Lot 1076 DR Horton Same 51009R04034
3/14/2023 230347 Westbrook Area K-4 163 Holloway Hill, Lot 1077 DR Horton Same 51009R04033
3/14/2023 230348 Westbrook Area K-4 182 Holloway Hilll, Lot 1112 DR Horton Same 51009R05137
3/14/2023 230349 Westbrook Area K-4 184 Holloway Hill, Lot 1113 DR Horton Same 51009R05138
3/20/2023 230410 Harmony Townhomes 136 Verse Ln., Lot 1 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 54040F10001
3/20/2023 230411 Harmony Townhomes 132 Verse Ln., Lot 2 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 54040F10002
3/20/2023 230412 Harmony Townhomes 128 Verse Ln., Lot 3 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 54040F10003
3/20/2023 230413 Harmony Townhomes 124 Verse Ln., Lot 4 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 54040F10004
3/20/2023 230414 Harmony Townhomes 120 Verse Ln., Lot 5 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 54040F10005

Total 25

Page 60 of 124



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

March 2023

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
3/8/2023 230140 1220 E. Hwy 80 The Dewitt-Tilton Group PDT Westside LLC Carwash 5098707016
3/3/2023 230141 200 Tanger Outlets Blvd. Bldg. 10 ResCon Group Tanger Outlets Retail Shell 50017A01099

3/14/2023 230292 2201 Pooler Pkwy Unit 500 & 600 Yufei Liu Delux Nail & Spa Nail Salon Addition 5100901007
3/13/2023 230321 102 Park Ave. Eclipse Brand Builders Georgia Heritage Federal Credit Union Interior Renovation 50017A01036

 

Total 4   

Page 61 of 124



Misc. Permits March 2023
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone
3/2/2023 230261 100 Blue Moon Xing, Unit 116 Dough Bean Signs LPA Blue Moon LLC Wall Sign
3/6/2023 230263 866 W. Hwy 80 Xpress Signs Simmons Hadden Wall and Pylon Cabinet Signs
3/6/2023 230271 311 Symons St. Donald Brown Same Detached Garage 5000309012
3/2/2023 230304 1269 Estates Way Generator Supercenter of Savannah Steven Dickey Electrical
3/2/2023 230305 145 Greenhill Close Breland Well Drilling Sunil Sheith Deep Well 
3/2/2023 230306 147 Greenhill Close Breland Well Drilling Rajendra Patel Deep Well 
3/2/2023 230307 1119 Plantation Dr. Robert Conley Same Bedroom Addition 5001303016
3/2/2023 230308 1119 Plantation Dr. Robert Conley Same Addition to Garage 5001303016
3/2/2023 230309 102 Melody Dr. Palmetto Solar Trung Mai Rooftop Solar Panels
3/2/2023 230312 138 Champlain Dr. Veterans Fence & Supply Joe Albanesi 4' Black Aluminum Fence
3/2/2023 230313 219 Merganser Dr. Veterans Fence & Supply Alexis Buentello 6' White Vinyl Privacy Fence
3/3/2023 230314 1545 Dean Forest Rd. Industial Technical Services Interport Secure Parking Electrical and branch curcuitry 5098804015A
3/3/2023 230315 406 Lions Den Dr. Premier Pools & Spas Thomas McKnight Inground Vinyl Pool and Decking 51015B0306
3/3/2023 230316 402 James Rd. Derek Knight Same Home Renovation 500411009
3/3/2023 230322 135 Coleman Blvd. Rowe Sprinkler Systems Fedex Ground Fire Sprinkler System
3/3/2023 230323 8 Wendy Ct. Dyess Air & Plumbing Beety McGreger Plumbing
3/6/2023 230327 1 Godley Station Blvd A-104 Georgia Sign Builders Evans Best LLC Wall Sign
3/8/2023 230328 155 Pine Barren Rd. Southern Power Electric Dozier Cook Electrical

3/14/2023 230332 200 Tanger Outlets Blvd Unit 790 First & Main Signs Tanger Outlets 7 Signs
3/15/2023 230333 50 Galloway Dr., Bldg A VSC Fire & Security AC WDM SPP Woner, LLC Fire Sprinkler System
3/9/2023 230334 3 Catteshall Ln. JDH Decks and Fences William Stenack Aluminum Fence
3/9/2023 230341 115 White Dogwood Ln. JDH Decks and Fences Mika Matsko Aluminum Fence

3/13/2023 230342 208 Tahoe Dr. Express Sunrooms of Savannah Tim Carlson Screen Porch 51014C03018
3/13/2023 230351 165 Isaac G Laroche Dr. JDH Decks and Fences YMCA of Coastal GA 54" Aluminum Fence 
3/13/2023 230359 157 Pine View Xing Monica Battle Same 6' Privacy Fence
3/15/2023 230363 1613 Dean Forest Rd. Breland Well Drilling Dean Forest Partners Deep Well 
3/15/2023 230364 1204 Homer City Way Moss Realty, Inc. Same 6' Wood Privacy Fence
3/16/2023 230365 4 Lake Heron Ct. W. Premier Pools & Spas Eric Powers Inground Fiberglass Pool 51014C01067
3/16/2023 230366 140 Harvest Hill Premier Pools & Spas Veronica Hindt Inground Vinyl Pool  51009R01022
3/16/2023 230367 7 Rockwood Ct. Thompson & Thompson Douglas Mozak Mechanical
3/20/2023 230371 307 Gleason Ave. Joseph and Nona Delgado Same Metal Storage Building w/ slab 5000203007
3/17/2023 230372 316 Serengerit Blvd. Freedom Forever Brittany Harding Roof Mounted Solar Panels 51015C01037
3/20/2023 230378 102 Zoya Ln. Lang Signs Inc. SSR Savannah LLC 5 Signs
3/20/2023 230379 1545 Pooler Pkwy Signs Unlimited Jorge Planta 6 Signs
3/21/2023 230380 1013 E Hwy 80 Ericsson FG Living Trust Cell Tower Collocate 5002301001
3/21/2023 230385 188 Sonata Cir. Thompson & Thompson Roderick Young Mechanical
3/21/2023 230386 10 Woodford Reserve Dr. Georges Dadjo Same 6' White Vinyl Privacy Fence
3/23/2023 230387 83 Coopers Ln. Dyess Air & Plumbing Marsha Daniels Mechanical
3/23/2023 230388 221 Pampas Dr. Dyess Air & Plumbing Noel Valez Plumbing
3/24/2023 230389 2 Amalfi Ave. TEC Electric Fiber Fast Home Electrical
3/31/2023 230390 60 Triple B Trl. Bergman KPRS LLC Duke Realty Security Fence and Gate
3/23/2023 230392 1223 Estates Way Ram Jack of SC Joseph and Tina Alba Foundation 
3/23/2023 230394 Crosscreek Dr. Harmony Partners LLC Same Timber Harvesting 
3/24/2023 230400 1215 E. Hwy 80 Pye Barker Fire Safety Pie Society Fire Suppression System
3/27/2023 230402 208 Sangrena Dr. Jeremy and Tina Kelly Same Covered Patio 5001201006
3/27/2023 230403 101 Coleman Blvd. Ram Jack of SC Denholtz Coleman LLC Foundation 

Page 62 of 124



Misc. Permits March 2023
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone
3/27/2023 230408 309 Casey Dr. Dyess Air & Plumbing Michael Brown Plumbing
3/29/2023 230416 305 Merganser Dr. Freedom Forever Wesley Ashworth Roof Mounted Solar Panels
3/30/2023 230421 1017 E. Hwy 80 Edwards Interior Graphics Liberty Commercial Wall Sign
3/31/2023 230425 31 Canal Bank Rd. Sheng Jian Chen Same 6' Wood Privacy Fence
3/31/2023 230426 10 Pinehurst Ln. Ram Jack of SC Brandy Duncan Foundation 
3/31/2023 230429 113 Oldwood Dr. American Fencing Michelle Estep 4' Aluminum Fence
3/31/2023 230430 129 Como Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Kelli Hiett 48" Aluminum Fence
3/31/2023 230431 251 Morgan Lakes Industrial Blvd. Champion Fire Protection Morgan Lakes Indutrial XIV Fire Alarm System

Total 54

Page 63 of 124



City of Pooler
Mobile Home Permits

March 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Mobile Home Installer Owner

Total 0

Page 64 of 124



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

March 2023
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

3/2/2023 220369 2003 Pooler Pkwy Retail Shell Barrie Hallam Mosaic One, LLC
3/3/2023 220916 Telfair Park 1004 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 436 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
3/3/2023 220921 Telfair Park 1005 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 362 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
3/3/2023 220927 Telfair Park 1002 Eastahven Blvd., Lot 437 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
3/6/2023 221173 405 W. Hwy 80 Unit 106 Staffing Agency Buildout Marsh Construction Kyle Hadden
3/6/2023 220669 Westwood Reserve 35 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 79 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/6/2023 220655 Westwood Reserve 44 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 70 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/6/2023 220415 Forest Lakes 116 Como Dr., Lot 916 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/7/2023 221001 Westbrook Glen 126 Harvest Hill, Lot 849 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
3/8/2023 220226 Westwood Reserve 315 Merganser Dr., Lot 39 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/8/2023 220268 Westwood Reserve 312 Merganser Dr., Lot 31 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/8/2023 220266 Westwood Reserve 306 Merganser Dr., Lot 29 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/8/2023 221106 Westbrook Glen 146 Harvest Hill, Lot 828 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
3/9/2023 210996 Westbrook  323 Park Chase, Lot 711 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes LLC Same
3/9/2023 220260 Hunt Club 343 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 647 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same

3/10/2023 221384 111 Coleman Blvd. DHL Office Buildout James Bonney David Hendershot
3/10/2023 220929 Westwood Reserve 60 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 62 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/10/2023 220490 110 Southern Junction Blvd., Unit 106 Retail Buildout River City Constructors Rumors Properties
3/13/2023 220158 Westwood Reserve 216 Merganser Dr., Lot 12 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/14/2023 220344 Hunt Club 366 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 6085 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
3/14/2023 220418 Forest Lakes 103 Como Dr., Lot 941 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/15/2023 211255 Sangrena Woods 1085 Woodland Dr., Lot 18 Single Family Detached KC Brothers Construction Same
3/16/2023 201094 Westbrook 104 Greenhill Close, Lot 739 Single Family Detached Tippins Homes Harvey Bream
3/16/2023 220975 Westbrook Glen 173 Harvest Hill, Lot 821 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
3/16/2023 220889 Forest Lakes 114 Como Dr., Lot 915 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/16/2023 220410 Forest Lakes 104 Como Dr., Lot 901 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/20/2023 221112 Telfair Park 1010 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 433 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
3/20/2023 220931 Westwood Reserve 56 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 64 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/20/2023 220930 Westwood Reserve 58 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 63 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/20/2023 220654 Westwood Reserve 46 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 69 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/21/2023 210579 Novare Apartments 100 Populus Dr., Bldg. 3000 Multi-Family Apartment Classic Plains Construction Novare Group
3/21/2023 210580 Novare Apartments 100 Populus Dr., Bldg. 4000 Multi-Family Apartment Classic Plains Construction Novare Group
3/24/2023 220888 Forest Lakes 110 Como Dr., Lot 904 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/24/2023 220976 Westwood Reserve 41 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 82 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/24/2023 221191 Harmony 124 Melody Dr. Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/27/2023 210997 Westbrook 206 Park Chase, Lot 714 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes LLC Same
3/27/2023 220854 Westwood Reserve 50 Woodford Reserve Dr.,Lot 67 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
3/27/2023 220922 Telfair Park 1007 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 363 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
3/28/2023 220700 Forest Lakes 1 Superior Ln., Lot 914 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
3/31/2023 221285 1 Godley Station Blvd. Unit A-104 Budget Blinds Buildout Excel Home Inspections & Construction Evans Best LLC

Page 65 of 124



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

March 2023
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner
Total 40

Page 66 of 124



Monthly Report
March 2023

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 202 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 593 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Josh Moody 26 Inspections
Total Inspections: 821 Inspections

Page 67 of 124



Page 68 of 124



Page 69 of 124



Page 70 of 124



ORDINANCE O2023-04.A 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES APPENDIX A - ZONING, 

ARTICLE Ill - GENERAL PROVISIONS BY AMENDING SECTION 6 - SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT 

REGULATIONS; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows: 

That APPENDIX A - ZONING, Article Ill. GENERAL PROVISIONS be amended by deleting the strikethrough 

text and adding the underlined text: 

Section 6. - Schedule of development regulations. 

(B) Schedule of commercial and industrial zoning district minimum yard requirements.

Schedule of Minimum Yard Requirements 
-

Zone Front Yard* Rear Yard**, 
.. 

Side Yard Height of Building 
C-1 *** 40 10 

' 

10 45 

C-2*** 60 10 10 60 
., 

C-P 30 20 "'- 20 so 

1-1 60 20 20 70 
- -

1-2 80 
-

>·, 40 40 \,., 70 

*Corner and through lots must meet front yard setbacks on each side that fronts a street right-of-way.

**Through lots do not have rear yards. 

***In the C-1 and C-2 districts, corner and through lots are only required to have the required minimum 

front yard setback at the building frGlltalong a designated primary frontage. Other yards with road 

frontage shaU Ra'.•e a minimum 30 feet of building setbackbe designated as secondary frontages or non
access frontages. "Where applicable. Second'ar;y frontages shall ihclude frontages that provide access to 
the site and non-ar,:Gess frontages small be frontages that do not provide access to the site. For the C-1 

district, secondary frontages shall have a minimum 25 foot setback and non-access frontages shall have a 

15 foot setback. For the C-2 district, secondary frontages shall have a minimum 35 foot setback and non

access frontages shall have a 2© foot setback. 

II 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

Ill 

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall be in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this ordinance. 

Page 71 of 124



Page 72 of 124



Page 73 of 124



ORDINANCE O2023-04.B 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES APPENDIX A - ZONING, 

ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS AND ARTICLE V- PROCEDURES FOR ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT, 

SECTION 5, PUBLIC NOTICE AND SECTION 6 - PUBLIC HEARING REQUIREMENTS AND CHAPTER 62 - 

PLANNING, ARTICLE II - PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION -SECTION 62-34 TO CLARIFY LANGUAGE 

RELATED PUBLIC NOTICE REQUIREMENTS AND PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURES; TO REPEAL ALL 

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows: 

That APPENDIX A- ZONING, Article II. DEFINITIONS, be.amended by adding the text as follows: 

Drug dependence center. A drug dependency center includes any facility for the treatment of 

drug dependency, including a substance abuse cente�; halfway house, or drug rehabilitation center. 

Zoning Procedures Law. Official Code of Georgia Annotated {O.C.G.A.) Sec. 36-66-1, et seq., as 

amended. 

II 

That APPENDIX A -ZONING, Article II. DEFINITIONS, be amended by deleting the strikethrough text and 

adding the underline text as follows: 

Zoning Action. For the purpose of this ordinance, a zoning action includes a 20AiRg map 

ameREimeAt, te-lft ameREime:nt,. a ¥a�aRee, eoREiitieR��1,1se per:missioR, site plaR appFo•.,al, er aR'{ etf:ter 

perR'litting proe,e.5fo:;sg_1,1ieee by tl=te .eonfeet of tf:tis ereinaRee.those actions defined by, the Zoning 

Pracedur:es;J,aw as a -zaning decisllin whereby final legislative action by a local gavernment results in a 

zoning text amendment. a zaning map tnendment, variance, conditional use permit, or zoning conditions 

related to a i:nap amendment or conditi�nal use permit. 

Ill 

That Appendix A - ZONING, Artide V. PROCEDURES FOR ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT, be 

amended by deleting the strikethrough text and adding the underline text as follows: 

Section 5. Public notice. 

After a eoR'lpleteEi applieatioR f:tas tieeR filea, 01e RelEt step iR tl=te appro•.cal fJFaeess fer a 2oning aetion 

re1:1uiree 9',' tl=tis ereinaRee is te set a Elate f.era p1,1tllie ReaFiRg oR the R'latter and reREier preper netiee to 

tl:le putilicUpon filing a completed application for a zoning action. a public hearing shall be scheduled and 

proper notice provided on such hearing. Proper public hearing notice procedures shall comply with the 

following requirementsare as f.ellows: 

(A) l::egsl-Pub'/ished notice. Notice of public hearings before tf:te plaRRing comFAission aRd the city

council as required by this section shall be published within a Rewspaper of genen>I eireulatien

�in the legal organ of the city in wf:ticR are eaFFieEI tf:te legal ad'4'ertiseR'lents of tRe ell¥ and

Page 74 of 124



Page 75 of 124



Page 76 of 124



Page 77 of 124



Page 78 of 124



Page 79 of 124



Page 80 of 124



Page 81 of 124



AGENDA ITEM 

Date: April 17, 2023 

Subject: Conditional Use for a proposed hardware store at 1256, 1270, 1272, 

and 1276 US Highway 80 East 

Background & Discussion: 

(This item was tabled at the March 27, 2023 Planning & Zoning meeting and 

tabled at the April 3, 2023 City Council meeting.) 

During the April 10, 2023 Planning & Zoning meeting, Ryan Strickland, with 

Thomas & Hutton Engineering, presented the conditional use request to the Board 

for their review and recommendation. According to Appendix A, Article IV, Table 

4.1, Allowed Uses by Zoning District, a hardware store is considered a conditional 

use within a C-1 (Light Commercial) Zoning District. The intent is to construct a 

+/- 35,000 square foot hardware store with a garden shop and the infrastructure to 

support it. 

Planning and Zoning Recommendation: 

After review of the criteria, P&Z recommended approval. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends review of the criteria for granting a conditional use prior to 

making a decision. 

Page 82 of 124



MAYOR 

Rebecca C. Benton 

CITY COUNCIL 

Shannon Black 
Aaron C. Higgins 
Tom Hutcherson 
Stevie E. Wall 
John M. Wilcher 
Karen L. Williams 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert H. Byrd, Jr. 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Steve Scheer 

DATE: 

TO: 

RE: 

PIN: 

OWNER: 

CITY OF POOLER 

March 15, 2023 

Adjacent Property Owners 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

Mayor and Council 

Conditional Use 

5-0012-01-016Y, 5-0012-01-003, 5-0012-01-004 and 

5-1002-01-015 

P-51 Properties, LLC 

Pooler Ace Hardware, on behalf of P-51 Properties, LLC, has petitioned the City of 

Pooler for a conditional use to construct a hardware store at 1256, 1270, 1272 and 

1276 W. US Highway 80. According to Appendix A, Zoning, Article IV, Table 4.1, 

Allowed Uses by Zoning Districts, a hardware store is only considered as a 

conditional use in a C-1 (Light Commercial) Zoning District. (see drawing) 

A Public Hearing is scheduled before the Planning and Zoning Commission on 

Monday, March 27, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. The Official Public Hearing before the Mayor 

and Council is scheduled for Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. The petitioner and 

any private individual shall be entitled to present evidence concerning the "Zoning 

Map Amendment" before the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or Mayor and 

Council. Any person speaking either in support or opposition to the zoning map 

amendment at the Official Public Hearing, please complete and submit, mail or 

email the Campaign Disclosure Form five (5) days prior to the meeting. Further 

information may be obtained by calling (912) 7 48-7261 during regular business 

hours. (Project# 230360) 

100 US Highway 80 SW I Pooler. GA 31322 I (912) 748-7261 I www.pooler-ga.gov 

Page 83 of 124



,. ·~]~ \:~,, 
~ :_. , . . ;=:.: _ _d __ 
Jl]W' ~~ ':.,•'!_ 

'!' . , I!"',.;: 

RECEIVED 
MAR 1 3 2023 

ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Conditional Use Application 

Applicant __ R_a_n_d_y_W_e_s_t_(_P_o_o_le_r_A_c_e_H_a_r_d_w_a_re_} ___________ --'-----

246 Oatland Island Road 

Mailing address ---------------'
--------------

------

Savannah . City ________________ _ State _G;;;.....;;.e..:.o-'-'rg_,_i_a ______ Zip 31410 

Telephone(_) 912 659-2237 Fax (__J·--------~------

Property owner,(s) P-51 PROPERTIES LLC 

PO BOX 1628 

SPRINGFIELD State ___ _,G=@=- =o.:.ar@=-'0 i=a,._ __ _ 
z· 31329-1628 1p __ _ 

Telephone (_) ___ 9_1_2_6_6~1_-_l 0=8 .... 6'--___ _ Fax (__) _________ ________ _ 

Contact Person(s)_R_y_a~n_T_h_o_m_p_s_o_n_(T_h_o_m_a_s_&_H_u_tt_o_n_} _______________ _ 

thompson.r@tandh.com 

Telephone(__) 912 547-5714 Fax ,____,_ _ ____ E-mail. ___ -,-____ _ 

• All staff correspondence will be sent only to one designated contact person . 

.. Addresses and telephEin.e numbers do not have to be Pepeated if • rovided above. 

Portions of 1256, 1270, 1272 and 127 6 W. US Highway 80 

Current zoning _C_-_1 ___ --'---~'-----==-=--Present use Vacant Single Family Residences 

Provide a brief description of proposed use on subject property. Describe those things, which you feel justify tlie action 

re~_~·este~. List the SJile<;i(ic;__sect10tis of h.e Zoning Ordinance which have a bearing on your request: 

, see info on C1d<i::11t1onal QogeJ _ 

OesGriptkm of the activities, # of units and hours of opefation of the prol:)osed conditional use: 

Construction of a +/- 35,000 s.f. hardware store with associated garden center, parking 

and other site features. Store h0urs vJlll be 7 am to 7 pm. 

A proposed starting date of land disturbance or construction, date of completion for all improvements and use 

openfng or date of first ocwupaoey: 

Plan is for construction to start 2nd half of 2023 and to complete and open in 2024 

A list of activities undertaken by the developer and subsequent occupant to mitigate all adverse impacts upon the 

surroun0in9 pr0perties before, durinQ and after the completion of developmen activities: 

Ihe wse is oloceQ on the site in a manner to olace the maj.ority of the parkin g facing 

t0words the new entry rQ<ad that will be built as part of the p roiect and not towards 

existin adjacent residential. Also, the sform yvater area is planned a long the only 

Page 84 of 124



~IEW PARCELB' 

EXl!llNG C-1 lONING 
PARCfl 

~ 9 ACREs•• 

IRUC'( MANEUVERING 
AREA 

R\GHl l~fRIGHl OUl ONLY 
FOR 111UC:1' OELIVER!fS 10 

l'ARCEl BAND 

SECOMOAR'r ACCESS 10 
PARCEL<.::~ 

& POOLER ACE HARDWARE 

--....... .i. r. 

NEW PARCELC 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

PARCEL 
22.5 ACRES 

(~ 

RlGltl OF WA'r VARIES 

l I 
FUU M0VEMEN1 ACCES! 

[TWO 12' LANES IN_ TWO 
12 tANES OUfl 

, ..... ,.: 

NEW PARCEL A 
EXISTINGC:-1 

ZONING PARCEL 
2,6 ACRES" 

,;; 

Nct;tfVEI) 
MAR I 31:tm 

r-:. 11:cru $UMMA.IIY 
G~OSS"At;R .... 'Gf 
BUllDING AREA 

ZONING DEPARTMENT 

STORE 
GA'R□ Et-1 CENTER 

PARKING REQUIREO 

PARKING PROVIDED 

LANDSCAPE AREA 

± <19 AC 
1 42.200 SF 

± 35.O005.f 
:t: 7.200 SF 

I SPACE PER 250 SF 
169 SPACES 

169 SPACES 

:t. 1 5 AC (:t: 32 % OF SITE] 

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 45' 

C ON-Otf tO UAL-UU .f..11 [ \ lMLNA•r SfIE P' l.AJI litf O UIUMfNU (ii ems 1,2,3 ond 6 cl 

J<pp<lhd,. A. M iox, • S1'<'11on •tel 

IIJlno IOC0tlOfl. VZD ond olt'l8I POt1inent 0010 ot ollCln0"'1e,-on lhc \lie 

lno..dng fYDl!I.. 10eatlo1"1 ond hmghl o l ~,. porting oocn orcm ond 

lanchc~. {Set• t,lte ptan and wmmar,.) 

1'2l0imerulon i.etboO lntu trom o,ooe,t~ Inc» ones ,uoo1 ~•-ot•wov lnot. 
U., .. llllili PIClln) 

Cl}"~c,n1 lhottklghlato, ono 01 c1,110 cuh. ~'hi" soo ree1 

lnotdng PtQP<>\(tO new C\ll(JI Ot\lo pubtc UO,,ls..of.,wa,; ~lh 1urmio •ool 

onov,ikUti... ond dmeo&ion., ol ol ~i.1.of-woy,(h ,rto pksn) 

1611tibiUlc;trec, dalo lrd.,clng ol lew.l 
o .G«on denVI¥ ol OWoing u,,lh. ("/o no resldenllol proposed) 

b,Poruttgraliol)(tl dwelng ut\ll.{.po1klng required lor commerclol use Is 

shown in ,ummory) 
c Percenl ond omounl ol lond cove,oge by use. and 

(See site plan and summor:y) 

d.Perc:enl and o mounl or floor oreo by u~e and by lype 

(S@e site pion and summary) 

NOTES 
- ,-1 -. INCLUtll:$ BO' ,uLL MOVEMEJ,11 ACCESS EASEMENT 

21 •· INCLUDES ◄a RVRO ACCESS EASlM!:l<T 
31 lREES Sl10WN fi,J,.'I OR ~1 NOT 8f A.&lE 10 BE PRESERVED UPON FINAL 

DESIGN 
4! SE18ACK5 IN c. I MAIN STREET OVERlA 'I' ARE: 

FRONT BUJLDlNG: 5' 
REAR BUILDING: 10' 
5IOE sun.DING: 5' 

i T 

CONDITIONAL USE EXH16H FOR HARDWARE STORE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

P ARCEt I - SfftlCKL PROPERTY /+IIGMWA Y ·I() 

POOLER. GEORGIA 

MARCH 9, 2022 

~ Pork ol Comme1ce Woy 
Savannoh. GA J 1405 • 912 2J~ 5300 

.,,.,,,.,., lhomokJndhullon com __ .....,.__......, __ ... ~-··~----I-·~-____,_..---..-.,-~ __ ......,, 
-~---·-... - ~---....... -111, 
....,.......,_. ___ ......, ____ ~_.,._... ____ 

(Clr,11C"I .. """ lk0,,-1 • "W"0" 

Page 85 of 124



tt.n,..tto.llCIIIICll' UIILIITUX"Al'l(llla 

1111 mo.nu ~oom:1,01 tt,,rw, WA\ CO~TA<:t(DU~ 1,:o=1 nc,,.t! IIU\IOC,n 
""IIOQlll•WASIUU[D,O,,lmrJSITE MJul,ulltl-lUll~fDAllll(I'"! 
.,rn,11~~ou,1,,.,. 

. :!'E::~::::..: .. -:;.e::-.-=...~~-
. u---fj•i-..,._,.._"" lW.-•- .: ... - •~• 

11• ... --l'!U'V"" 

I 

8URNSED DR,.J 
,..,.., ..... . "I.no 

' I 
I 

I 

\ 

Alctrl(r.'!./IOl:'>11('"~ LUUt:111$. ... ()-..-,a;IOI\N(lC•IIE 
~ ,,m[DOOI ft'l\fVT Mo: ll[Jl[ ..... Drl)<.Ol'[g ron mc1aa .. ICl«G 

1----~------ I ··- ~, 
L•••LU"" - ----- - ..;.- - • 

I 
I 
\ 

i 
I 

\ 
\ 

\ 
I 

. 
I 

' 

\ 

\ 

I 

I 

' I 
I 

I . ~ 

~-~ w. 
~•l~l 

........ ,,., .. , , ........ , ...• 
==?:! --· ~~--
=·~i~ 

MES~/~,;.: - --\ 

c,ot-•-"'(lltllll 
. ..... ... .. . . .. 11111 

\ 

\ 

-Dl\--'"ll. , .. .,_,_,.., .. 
U.J}ll,l'!l ll7 

!' . --

~ 
n..51ACRl!:S 

~ 
.;.;j ? 

I 
I -•-"""'II 

(/ :~~ 

[l"1;(•111.0>. ,t,/"{N< 
ntll; ~ ,...NT 111'~~~1 ..,._ 

Ml.NI II" WiM,Qlfl>,~ 
1UoDU>11'MOI• 

""'"!-•&:11 

Ortlr..;l,~sacin 

ilECOMBINATION PLAT 
Ul-:JO.DUJflt:1-.:S l't-1~1'.ul~U ~l.)H 

P-51 PROPERTIES, LLC 
lOU. l •O"°':.tEIU161J0 

CITYOFl'OOl,.U! CHATli.o~\COUHTY GA 

Page 86 of 124



Conditional Use Standards 

Review Criteria 

• The planning commission shall hear and make recommendations upon such uses in a district 

that are permitted as conditional uses. The application to establish such use shall be approved 

by the city council on a.finding that: 

1. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purpose of this ordinance, 

2. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or the 

general neighborhood or adversely affect the health and safety of residents and workers, 

3 . The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard because of the number of persons who will 

attend Gr use such facility, vehicular movement acquainted with the use, noise or fumes generated by or 

as a result of the use, or type of physical activity associated with the land use, 

4 . The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the existing uses of adjacent properties, 

5. The proposed use will be placed on a lot which is of sufficient size to satisfy the space requirements of 

said use, 

6. The p arking and all development standards set forth for each particular use for which a permit may be 

granted will be met; and, 

7. The action ½lill not adversely impact adjacent or nearby properties in terms of property values, by 

rendering such properties less suitable and therefore less marketable for the type of development to 

which they are committed or restricted in order to promote the public welfare and protect the 

established development pattern. 

Additional Mitigation Requirements 

• The Planning Commission may suggest and the Mayor and Council may impose or require such additional 

restrictions and standards (e.g., increased setbacks, buffer strips, screening, etc.): 

1. As may be necessary to protect the health and safety of workers and residents in the community; and 

2 . To protect the value and use of property in the general neighborhood. 

If you have any questions concerning this infonnation please contact Kim Classen @ (912) 748-7261 or kclassen@pooler-ga.gqy 

Page 87 of 124



. .. .. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL 
INTERESTS 

With respect to the following requests made by: 

Pooler Ace Hardware, on behalf of P-51 Properties, LLC, has petitioned the City of 

Pooler for a conditional use to construct a hardware store at 1256, 1270, 1272 and 1276 

W. US Highway 80. 

I, in complying with O.C.G.A. 36-67 A-2, do hereby declare that: 

___ (I) I have a property interest in the above described real property. 

___ (2) I have a financial interest in a business entity which has a property 

interest in the above described real property. 

___ (3) I have a member of my family who has an interest described by 

(I) and (2) above. 

___ (4) None ofthe above. 

If you checked paragraph (3) or ( 4 ), stop here. 

If you marked either paragraph ( 1) or (2), sign the below statement. 

I understand that Georgia Law (O.C.G.A. 36-67 A-2) requires me to disqualify myself from voting on 

the rezoning action relating to this affidavit. I have not and will not take any other action on the 

application for rezoning regarding this affidavit. 

Page 88 of 124



Page 89 of 124



Page 90 of 124



Page 91 of 124



Page 92 of 124



Page 93 of 124



Page 94 of 124



Page 95 of 124



Page 96 of 124



Page 97 of 124



Page 98 of 124



Page 99 of 124



Page 100 of 124



Page 101 of 124



Page 102 of 124



Page 103 of 124



Page 104 of 124



Page 105 of 124



Page 106 of 124



Page 107 of 124



Page 108 of 124



Page 109 of 124



Page 110 of 124



Page 111 of 124



Page 112 of 124



Page 113 of 124



Page 114 of 124



Page 115 of 124



Page 116 of 124



Page 117 of 124



Page 118 of 124



Page 119 of 124



Page 120 of 124



 

 

 

 

 
After recording, return to: 
Georgia Power Company 
Attn: Land Acquisition (Recording) 
241 Ralph McGill Blvd NE 
Bin 10151 
Atlanta, GA 30308-3374 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

PROJECT 2022100212  LETTER FILE   DEED FILE   MAP FILE   

ACCOUNT NUMBER   10549137-GPC9596-VBS-GP530E01022  

NAME OF LINE/PROJECT: 1091 SOUTH ROGERS STREET, POOLER, GA (CHATHAM COUNTY) 

DISTRIBUTION LINE   

        

PARCEL NUMBER 001  

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 1 of 3 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

CHATHAM COUNTY 

 

E A S E M E N T 

 

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid by GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a 

Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, CITY OF POOLER (the “Undersigned”, which term shall include 

heirs, successors and/or assigns), whose mailing Address is , 100 SOUTH WEST 

HIGHWAY 80, POOLER, GA, 31322, does hereby grant and convey to the Company, its 

successors and assigns, the right, privilege and easement to go in, upon, along, 

across, under and through the Property (as defined below) for the purposes 

described herein. 

 

The “Property” is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the 

Undersigned at WINSKIE ROAD, POOLER, GEORGIA  31322 (Tax Parcel ID No. 50004A 

02025) in the 8 GMD (Georgia Militia District) of Chatham County, Georgia. 

The “Easement Area” is defined as any portion of the Property located 

within fifteen (15) feet of the centerline of the overhead distribution line(s) 

as installed in the approximate location shown on “Exhibit A” attached hereto 

and made a part hereof. 

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to 

construct, operate, maintain, repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and 

under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current with poles, 

wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other necessary 

apparatus, fixtures, and appliances; the right to attach communication 

facilities and related apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to said poles; the 

right to stretch communication or other lines within the Easement Area; the 

right to permit the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures, 

and appliances of any other company or person to said poles for electrical, 

communication or other purposes; the right to assign this Easement in whole or 

Page 121 of 124



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

PARCEL 001   NAME OF 

LINE/PROJECT: 

1091 SOUTH ROGERS STREET, POOLER, GA (CHATHAM 

COUNTY) DISTRIBUTION LINE   

   

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 2 of 3 

in part; the right at all times to enter upon the Easement Area for the purpose 

of inspecting said lines and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and 

extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; the right to cut, trim, 

remove, clear and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers, 

fixtures, and appliances all trees and other obstructions that may in the opinion 

of the Company now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere 

with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground lines, 

transformers, fixtures, and appliances; the right of ingress and egress over 

the Property to and from the Easement Area; and the right to install and maintain 

electrical and communication lines and facilities to existing and future 

structure(s) within the Easement Area under the easement terms provided herein. 

Any timber cut on the Easement Area by or for the Company shall remain the 

property of the owner of said timber. 

 

The Undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights, 

privileges and easements hereinbefore set out. 

The Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement, agreement 

or understanding not herein expressed. 

The Undersigned warrants and will forever defend the title to the 

rights, privileges, easements and interests granted herein to the Company 

against the claims of all persons whomsoever. 

[Signature(s) on Following Page(s)] 

  

Page 122 of 124



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

PARCEL 001   NAME OF 

LINE/PROJECT: 

1091 SOUTH ROGERS STREET, POOLER, GA (CHATHAM 

COUNTY) DISTRIBUTION LINE   

   

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Undersigned has/have hereunto set his/her/their 

hand(s) and seal(s), this ___________ day of _____________________, ________. 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the 

presence of: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Witness 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Notary Public 

CITY OF POOLER  

  

 

 

By: _____________________________ (SEAL) 

Name:   

Title:   

 

Attest: _________________________ (SEAL) 

Name:   

Title:   

 

 

 

 

[CORPORATE SEAL] 

 

 

 

Page 123 of 124



1091 SOUTH ROGERS STREET, POOLER, GA 

(CHATHAM COUNTY) DISTRIBUTION LINE

LIMS # 2022100212

Work Location(s): 1-24Environmental & Natural Resources

Parcel 001
DRAWING NOT TO SCALE

Exhibit “A” Acknowledge Receipt:

Winskie Road 

Tax Parcel # 50004A 02024

Proposed GPC underground 

distribution line

1

2

0.5

CITY OF POOLER

WINSKIE ROAD 

Tax Parcel # 50004A02025

Existing underground 

distribution line

Proposed GPC 

transformer/cabinet

Page 124 of 124


	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 20, 2023
	6A_City Council Meeting_2023-04-03_Minutes_draft

	B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Los Com
	6B_Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Los Compas, LLC DBA Taqueria Los Compas at 115 Cana

	C. Special Event Permit Application for Pooler Chambe
	6C_Special Event Permit Application for Pooler Chamber of Commerce on July 1, 2023 

	D. Department Reports
	1. Public Works
	6D1_Public Works

	2. Finance
	6D2_Finance

	3. Fire
	6D3_Fire

	4. Police
	6D4_Police

	5. Recreation
	6D5_Recreation

	6. Planning & Zoning
	6D6_P&Z



	VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2023-04.A – To Amend Appendix A – Zonin
	7A_Ordinance O2023-04.A – To Amend Appendix A – Zoning, Article III – General Provisions by Amend

	B. Ordinance O2023-04.B - To Amend Appendix A - Zonin
	7B_Ordinance O2023-04.B - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article II - Definitions and Article V - 


	VIII. OLD BUSINESS
	A. Conditional Use Request to Construct a Hardware St
	8A_Conditional Use Request to Construct a Hardware Store at 1256,1270, 1272, and 1276 US Highway 


	IX. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Site Plan for 7 Brew Coffee Shop at 502 Pooler Par
	9A_Site Plan for 7 Brew Coffee Shop at 502 Pooler Parkway

	B. Minor Subdivision of Lot 4 at Clear Lake Reserve
	9B_Minor Subdivision of Lot 4 at Clear Lake Reserve

	C. Acceptance of Performance Bond and Final Plat for 
	9C_Acceptance of Performance Bond and Final Plat for 360 Communities at Clear Lake, Phase 1A

	D. Georgia Power Company Utility Easement Request for
	9D_Georgia Power Company Utility Easement Request for a Distribution Line at 1090 South Rogers St


	X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XI. ADJOURNMENT



